
 
   

 

 
  Date of Publication 23 January 2024 

Stronger Communities  
Committee Meeting of Witney Town Council 
 

Monday, 29th January, 2024 at 6.00 pm 
 
To members of the Stronger Communities Committee - L Cherry, G Meadows, O Collins, J Aitman, R Smith, 
T Ashby, A Bailey, J Doughty and G Doughty (and all other Town Councillors for information).  
 

You are hereby summonsed to the above meeting to be held in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney 
for the transaction of the business stated in the agenda below.  
 

Admission to Meetings 
 

All Council meetings are open to the public and press unless otherwise stated. 
 

Numbers of the public will be limited, with priority given to those who have registered to speak on an item on 
the agenda. Any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting should contact the Committee Clerk 
derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk in advance.  
 

 

Recording of Meetings 
 

Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 the council’s public meetings may be 
recorded, which includes filming, audio-recording as well as photography.  
 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings, please let the Deputy Town Clerk or 
Democratic Services Officer know before the start of the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 
1. Apologies for absence   

 To consider apologies and reasons for absence. 
 
Committee members who are unable to attend the meeting should notify the Committee Clerk 
derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk prior to the meeting, stating the reason for absence. 
 
Standing Order 30(d)(v) permits the appointment of substitute Councillors to a Committee whose role 
is to replace ordinary Councillors at a meeting of a Committee if ordinary Councillors of the Committee 
have confirmed to the Proper Officer before the meeting that they are unable to attend. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in any items under consideration 
at this meeting in accordance with the Town Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 8) 

 a) To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on  13 November 2023. 
b) Matters arising from the minutes not covered elsewhere on the agenda. (Questions on the 

progress of any item). 
 

4. Public Participation   

 The meeting will adjourn for this item. 
 
Members of the public may speak for a maximum of five minutes each during the period of public 
participation, in line with Standing Order 42.  Matters raised shall relate to the following items on the 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk
mailto:derek.mackenzie@witney-tc.gov.uk


 

 
 

Mrs Sharon Groth FSLCC fCMgr 
Town Clerk 
 

Town Hall, Market Square 
Witney 
Oxon 
OX28 6AG 

T: 01993 704379 
E: info@witney-tc.gov.uk 
 

w: www.witney-tc.gov.uk 

 

agenda. 
 

5. Finance Report  (Pages 9 - 15) 

 To receive the report of the Responsible Financial Officer. 
 

Communications & Community Engagement 
 
6. Communications Report   

 To receive the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer (to follow). 
 

7. Community Engagement Report   

 To receive the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer (to follow). 
 

8. D-Day 80th Anniversary   

 To receive a verbal update from the meeting held earlier today. 
 

9. Youth Council Task & Finish Group  (Pages 16 - 17) 

 To receive the notes of the meeting held on 15 January 2024. 
 

10. Youth Services   

 To receive a verbal update from the Deputy Town Clerk. 
 

Street Furniture & Infrastructure 
 
11. Xmas Lights Working Party  (Pages 18 - 20) 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2024. 
 

12. In Bloom  

 To receive the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer (to follow). 
 

13. Woodgreen Bus Shelter Request  (Page 21) 

 To receive and consider a request for a Bus Shelter. 
 

14. Witney High Street Engagement Report  (Pages 22 - 57) 

 To note Oxfordshire County Council’s Witney High Street Engagement Report. 
 

Events 
 
15. Third Party Events Report  (To Follow) 

 To receive the report of the Venue & Events Officer (to follow). 
 

 

 
Town Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2

mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk


 

 
 

Mrs Sharon Groth FSLCC fCMgr 
Town Clerk 
 

Town Hall, Market Square 
Witney 
Oxon 
OX28 6AG 

T: 01993 704379 
E: info@witney-tc.gov.uk 
 

w: www.witney-tc.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 3

mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk


 
1 

 

STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Held on Monday, 13 November 2023 

 
At 6.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney 

 
Present: 

 
 Councillor G Meadows (Vice-Chair, in the Chair) 

 
Councillors: O Collins 

R Smith 
 

J Doughty 
G Doughty (In place of T Ashby) 
 

Officers: Adam Clapton Deputy Town Clerk 
 Sharon Groth Town Clerk 
 Derek Mackenzie Senior Administrative Officer & 

Committee Clerk 
 

Others: No members of the public. 
  
 

 
SC601   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ashby, Cherry, Aitman and Bailey. Cllr G 
Doughty attended as a substitute for Cllr Ashby. 
 

SC602   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest from members or officers. 
 

SC603   MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Stronger Communities committee held on 18 September 
2023 were received. 

 
Updates were provided on: 
 
SC485 – The Chair advised members that Councillor Aitman had confirmed that Witney Music 
Festival would be applying to the West Oxfordshire District Council’s Westhive scheme for 
additional funding towards their event at the Leys. 
 
SC496 – The first meeting of the Christmas Lights Working Party took place earlier that day, 
Minutes would be available at the meeting of the Policy Governance & Finance Committee on 20 
November 2023. 
 
SC497 – Members were advised that the two grit bins agreed for Kingfisher Meadows would not 
be installed as the developer had refused for these to be placed on the estate. 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Stronger Communities - 13 November 2023 

 
2 

Resolved: 
 
That, the minutes of the Stronger Communities committee held on 18 September 2023 be 
approved as a correct record of the meeting and be signed by the chair. 
 

SC604   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation. 
 

SC605   REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2023/24 AND DRAFT BASE REVENUE BUDGET 2024/25 AND 
REVENUE GROWTH ITEMS, SPECIAL REVENUE PROJECTS AND CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 
The Committee received the report of the Responsible Financial Officer along with a verbal 
update from the Town Clerk. 

 
In addition to hearing about revenue growth items and special revenue/capital projects, 
Members discussed the request from West Oxfordshire District Council for a contribution of 
£10,000 toward the costs of running the town CCTV. Although this amount had historically been 
paid by the council, Members did not feel reassured as to the benefits the CCTV provided and 
there was no evidence of its effectiveness. Members asked that Officers request statistics and 
agreed to defer any decision until statistical evidence is provided and reviewed. 
 
Recommended: 
 

1. That, the report and verbal update be noted and, 
2. That, the revised base revenue budget for 2023/24 and the initial base revenue budgets 

for 2024/25 draft estimates be noted and, 
3. That, bids for Revenue Growth Items, Special Revenue Projects and Capital Projects for 

2024/25 be approved and, 
4. That, the Committee noted work on the above was ongoing and were subject to change 

in the final budget and, 
5. That, Officers request evidence of the effectiveness of the CCTV system for future 

consideration by the committee. 
 

SC606   RESIDENT'S SATISFACTION SURVEY 
 
The Committee received the report of the Deputy Town Clerk which provided the outcomes of 
the resident’s satisfaction survey. 

 
Members were pleased to see the very positive responses to the Foral Display and Christmas 
Lights and the action that had already been taken to address concerns about the Bus Shelter 
provision. A question on the ownership of a flowerbed at Queen Emma’s Dyke was raised. 
 
In response to a negative comment about the 2022 Remembrance event Councillor J Doughty 
took the opportunity to offer her thanks to all officers and staff involved in the 2023 
Remembrance event that took place the day before. Members noted that the Council, and it’s 
officers facilitate, but do not run all events for the town. 
 
Due to the number of “Not Applicable” responses to the Civic Events question members asked 
that this was reworded to include “Community Events” as it was thought that residents 
completing the survey were unaware of the events that the Council facilitates. It was agreed the 

Page 5



Stronger Communities - 13 November 2023 

 
3 

Council would continue to display its support banners for events that it provides financial 
support to in order to highlight its presence. 
 
The Deputy Town Clerk advised members that the newsletter due to be issued in January would 
include a calendar of dates of events so that residents are advised of and see the activities that 
the council facilitates. A member suggested the use of a QR code to a dedicated webpage to 
allow updated information to be shared as events planning progresses.  
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the report be noted and, 
2. That, an amendment is made to the Civic Events question in future editions of the survey 

and, 
3. That, the Officers investigate the ownership of the flower bed on the corner of Queen 

Emma’s Dyke and Corn Street and, 
4. That, Officers consider the use of QR codes in order to update residents of event details. 
 
 

SC607   COMMUNICATIONS REPORT 
 
The Committee received the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer 
which provided an update ahead of the preparation of the Spring 2024 Newsletter to residents 
and the Council’s 50th Anniversary in 2024. 

 
Members discussed the items covered in the report and were very keen to commence 
campaigns to reduce the level of dog fouling and Vandalism; they felt these should be 
informative and carry a serious tone and supported the comments made about advising 
residents of the costs incurred to put right act of Vandalism. 
 
Regular social media posts as well as traditional posters would be utilised and displayed in 
prominent positions including the council’s noticeboards, schools and the library. 
 
Members also asked that the spring newsletter, as well as including details of costs incurred to 
put right act of vandalism, that it also included an explanation of the costs incurred by the 
council for providing or supporting the organisation of events and services such as the cost of 
football pitch maintenance, fairs, Christmas lights, warm/cold spaces days and other community 
benefits. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the report be noted and, 
2. That, the wording “ Celebrating 50 Years” is added to the Commemorative Town Council 

logo and, 
3. That, campaigns are commenced to discourage dog fouling and highlight the financial impact 

of vandalism and, 
4. That, the spring newsletter include details of the services provided by the Council and costs 

incurred. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Stronger Communities - 13 November 2023 

 
4 

SC608   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT REPORT 
 
The Committee received the report of the Communications & Community Engagement Officer 
outlining upcoming Community events. 

 
Members had numerous ideas for how the council could mark the 50th Anniversary of becoming 
a Town Council, such as the launch of an annual speaking and debate competition for school 
children, a 50th Anniversary board to mark the work and efforts of people that have given 
support to Witney over a prolonged period of time and a display of Witney history across that 
50-year period. They also considered ideas for how the Council could be involved in the 
allocation of special 50th Anniversary grants during 2024.It was decided with so many ideas that 
the decision of which to progress  delegated to Officers in agreement with the Mayor & Deputy 
Mayor. 
 
Members were reluctant initially to reduce the use of the Community Window to two weeks; 
they heard from the Senior Administrative Clerk who explained further reasoning for the change 
in order to facilitate more groups and to offer the opportunity for those that only require a 
shorter period such as Witney Pride to be accommodated. A proposal was made, and a vote was 
taken to agree the recommendation to reduce the use to a two-week period. Three members 
were in favour, one member, Councillor O Collins voted against. All members agreed to review 
the decision in 12 months’ time. 
 
Recommended: 
 
1. That, the report be noted and, 
2. That, decision regarding the events for the councils 50th Anniversary be delegated to Officers 

in agreement with the Mayor & Deputy Mayor and, 
3. That, a budget of £5,000 be requested for the Councils 50th Celebrations and, 
4. That, the use of the community window be reduced to 2 weeks from May 2024 and, 
5. That, the time period for use of the community window be reviewed in 12 months. 
 
 
 

SC609   WITNEY TOWN PARTNERSHIP 
 
Members received a verbal update from the Town Clerk/C.E.O following the meeting of the 
Witney Town Partnership held on 19 September 2023. 

 
Members were advised that the next meeting was due to be held later that week and that 
stakeholders in the Partnership had recently carried out a walk around the town centre to carry 
out an evaluation of signage. 
 
Members gave their views with requests that perhaps the signage could be more “modern” and 
that Visual signage displays could be erected on the main road gateways to the town to promote 
events if this is something that West Oxfordshire District Council could finance. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, the verbal update be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 7



Stronger Communities - 13 November 2023 

 
5 

SC610   YOUTH COUNCIL TASK & FINISH GROUP 
 
The Committee received notes of the Youth Council Task & Finish Group meeting held 6 
November 2023. 

 
Resolved: 
 
That, the summary notes of the meeting be noted and the recommendations therein be 
approved.  
  
 

SC611   EXPERIENCE OXFORDSHIRE PARTNERSHIP 
 
Ther Committee received correspondence from Experience Oxfordshire and considered if the 
Council should sign up to the scheme. 

 
Members discussed the benefits which included the promotion of events in Council venues, 
particularly given that the Corn Exchange had had to cancel a recent event due to low uptake of 
ticket sales. 
 
Members had concerns about the outreach of the scheme’s website and social presence. They 
asked that Officers obtain further information so that a decision can be made at a future 
meeting however, asked that the amount to join the scheme be taken into account when setting 
the budget for 2024/25. 
 
Recommended: 
 
1. That, the correspondence be noted and, 
2. That, Officer obtains further information from Experience Oxfordshire and, 
3. That, the sum of £1,199 +Vat be included in the Budget Setting for 2024/25. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at: 7.38 pm 

 
Chair 

Page 8



STRONGER COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 29 January 2024 

Title:  Finance Report 

Contact Officer:  Responsible Financial Officer (RFO)  

 

Should Members have any queries about this report advance notice would be appreciated, 

in writing, by 5pm on the Friday before the meeting to allow for a full response at the 

meeting. 

Background 

Detailed income and expenditure statements for budgets which are the responsibility of this 

committee are enclosed. The period to which this report relates is 1 April 2023 to 31 

December 2023.  

Current Situation 

A full review of the budgetary position was undertaken during the budget cycle. Most areas 

of interest were raised at the last meeting of this committee and at the extra-ordinary 

meeting of the council.  The RFO would refer members to the finance/ budget reports which 

were approved at those meetings for further details. 

The Committee’s services are divided into two base revenue cost centres, responsibilities as 

follows: 

Cost Centre Area Description 
 

402 Community 
Infrastructure 

This cost centre relates to the infrastructure found in the 
town including bus shelters, bins, benches, Christmas 
lights, cycle racks, defibrillators, church clock and floral 
displays. 

 
408 Community 

Activities 
This relates to community events like the Advent Fayre, 
Remembrance Day parade, anniversaries, as well as 
supporting the Youth Council. For the 2024/25 budget 
provision has been made to commemorate the 80th 
Anniversary of D-Day and to mark the 50th Anniversary of 
the creation of the Town Council. 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Current year budget: In terms of the report presented at this meeting, the current year 

(2023/24) budget is now those figures which were projected when the estimates were revised 

and agreed by the Council at its meeting on 8 January 2024.  It should be noted that the 

revised estimates were produced by your officers in the autumn of 2023.  This means that, 

with the year end (31 March 2024) approaching, there will be some cases where the actual 

spend to date exceeds the revised estimates.  Conversely there will be other lines where 

actuals will be year-end not reach the revised estimate figure. Overall the impact on budget 

should be broadly neutral when the year-end accounts are produced. 

Members are reminded that expenditure is not necessarily incurred evenly over the course 

of the year. For example the vast majority of expenditure in relation to nominal ledger code 

4025 (insurance) is incurred in April each year when the annual premium is paid.  There will 

also be similar patterns on the income side such as football and cricket pitch hires. 

Note that in relation to recharges from the office and works teams (nominal ledger codes 

4892 to 4899 inclusive), these have been processed to 30 November 2023. 

Estimates for 2024/25:  These are shown in the report in the three columns on the right-hand 

side of the page.   

SUMMARY FOR 2023/24 

 
Overall the management accounts show the following in relation to the current year: 
 

 2023/24 
Original budget-  
Jan. 23 

2023/24 
Projected estimate-  
Nov.23 

2023/24 
Year to date 
(Month 9) 

Expenditure £528,635 £491,714 £571,960 

Less income - (£8,822) (£2,670) 

Net expenditure £528,635 £428,892 £569,290 

 

The projected estimate (net expenditure) for the current financial year is 18.9% below original 

net expenditure and therefore the Committee’s services are being delivered within budget.    

Some of the underspend relates to budget lines which the Council has not needed to utilise 

this year due to careful asset management. Ahead of the year end your officers will be 

thoroughly examining the various budget lines and proposals will come forward following the 

financial year end (31 March 2024) for a number of these underspends to be transferred into 

the earmarked reserves to allow projects to continue and to provide for prudential reserves 

where expenditure has not been required this year but will in future years. On several nominal 

codes where expenditure is likely to be under-budget the revised budget is retained at the 

original. A proposal will come forward at final accounts stage for any difference between 

spend and budget to then be transferred to the earmarked reserve at year end. The affected 

codes are cost centre 402 nominal ledger codes 4035, 4036, 4037, 4039, 4040, 4066, 4067, 

Page 10



4166, 4210, 4215; and cost centre  408 nominal ledger codes 4103, 4111, 4141, 4160, 4161 

and 4169. 

There have also been reductions in the recharges in relation to the works team across most 

cost centres, compared with original budget. This is due to staffing costs being lower than 

originally budgeted for and this has impacted the bottom-line.  

Over-spends on nominal budgets may, where appropriate, be met from earmarked reserves.  

Any adjustments will be made at final accounts stage (31 March 2024) and will then reduce 

revenue expenditure for the year. For example for budget 4200/402 (street furniture) the 

original budget was £1,000, the revised budget projection was £4,600 and the year-to-date 

spend £5,033. The additional spend may be taken from the earmarked reserve. 

Environmental Impact 

The Council declared a Climate Change Emergency at its meeting on 26 June 2019; with this 

in mind Councillors should have due regard to the environmental impact of any decisions they 

make with regard to its facilities and services it operates. 

Officers are continually assessing the environmental impact of services and assets to ensure 

where possible measures are taken to support the Council’s climate declaration of carbon 

neutrality by 2028. This extends to the procurement of goods and services. 

Risk 

In decision making Councillors should give consideration to any risks to the Council and any 

action it can take to limit or negate its liability.   

Members are reminded that collectively they are custodians of the public purse with most of 

the funding coming from the taxpayers of Witney.  Therefore, Officers ensure they get best 

value, value for money, and comply with the Council’s Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, 

and Procurement Policy. 

Financial Implications 

This report forms part of the Council’s due diligence and a process in line with its Financial 

Regulations.  The financial implications are detailed above and also in the attached 

appendices.   

Recommendations 

Members are invited to approve the report and the management accounts of the 

Committee’s services to 31 December 2023. 

 

Page 11



WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL23/01/2024
09:26

Page 1

Note: Stronger Communities Committee, 29 January 2024
Annual Budget - By Committee (Actual YTD Month 9)

Last Year 2022-23 Current Year  2023-24 Next Year 2024-25
Total Actual YTD Projected CommittedBudget Actual Agreed EMR Carried Forward

Stronger Communities
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE402

1052 EXPENSES RECOVERED 0 1,252 1,252 00 0 1,336 0 0
1170 GRANTS RECEIVED 0 4,020 4,020 00 3,345 0 0 0
1171 DONATIONS RECEIVED 0 3,550 3,550 01,000 1,667 1,334 0 0

Total Income 0 8,822 8,822 01,000 5,012 2,670 0 0
4013 RENT PAID 0 0 0 05 0 0 0 0
4014 ELECTRICITY 4,100 1,635 3,101 01,000 2,281 3,411 0 0
4017 CONTRACT CLEAN/WASTE 3,000 2,229 3,000 05,000 6,337 3,000 0 0
4025 INSURANCE 120 112 112 0120 112 112 0 0
4035 BUS SHELTER MAINTENANCE 2,000 60 2,000 02,000 20 3,000 0 0
4036 PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 2,630 679 2,630 02,630 4,777 2,630 0 0
4037 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 3,000 54 3,000 03,000 0 3,000 0 0
4038 OTHER MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 00 3 0 0 0
4039 HORTICULTURE 750 1,338 1,700 0750 0 750 0 0
4040 ARBORICULTURE 20,000 18,065 20,000 035,480 11,943 20,000 0 0
4066 TREE REPLACEMENT 8,000 5,620 8,000 06,000 4,575 8,000 0 0
4067 Tree Survey 8,000 0 8,000 08,000 4,446 8,000 0 0
4105 XMAS LIGHTS, TREE & INFRASTRUC 44,000 31,074 44,000 035,120 39,071 55,000 0 0
4166 DEFIBRILLATOR EXPENDITURE 4,000 292 4,000 04,000 1,446 4,000 0 0
4200 STREET FURNITURE 1,000 5,033 4,600 01,000 2,170 5,000 0 0
4208 COVID-19 MEMORIAL 0 634 618 01,500 1,667 0 0 0
4210 CHURCH CLOCK 1,500 0 1,500 04,500 69 1,500 0 0

Continued on next page

P
age 12

A
ppendix 



WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL23/01/2024
09:26

Page 2

Note: Stronger Communities Committee, 29 January 2024
Annual Budget - By Committee (Actual YTD Month 9)

Last Year 2022-23 Current Year  2023-24 Next Year 2024-25
Total Actual YTD Projected CommittedBudget Actual Agreed EMR Carried Forward

4211 WAR MEMORIAL/ CH.YRD 0 -3,675 0 00 0 0 0 0
4215 IN BLOOM - INC SCHOOLS CHALLEN 7,250 1,528 7,250 07,250 1,013 7,250 0 0
4495 TFR FROM EARMARKED R 0 0 0 0-33,730 0 0 0 0
4888 O/S STAFF RCHG (TO 30/09/23) 0 0 0 070,952 20,276 0 0 0
4890 O/S O'HEAD RCHG (TO 30/09/22) 0 0 0 014,476 4,107 0 0 0
4891 AGENCY R/C (TO 30/09/22) 0 0 0 081,866 81,866 0 0 0
4892 C/S STAFF RCHG 17,967 10,799 16,529 016,543 13,858 18,431 0 0
4893 C/S O'HEAD RCHG 5,176 3,824 5,124 04,590 4,532 5,214 0 0
4894 GROUNDS STAFF RECHARGE 70,697 21,906 41,341 00 16,736 75,409 0 0
4895 GROUNDS O'HEAD RECHARGE 26,103 34,413 30,216 00 8,716 35,854 0 0
4896 MTCE STAFF RECHARGE 87,913 63,981 74,530 00 36,136 86,436 0 0
4897 MTCE O'HEAD RECHARGE 8,604 5,296 7,877 00 5,511 7,965 0 0
4899 DEPOT REALLOCATION 9,187 10,356 15,442 00 0 15,763 0 0
4990 CONTRN TO CCTV SCH. 10,000 0 10,000 010,000 10,000 10,000 0 0

Overhead Expenditure 344,997 215,255 314,570 0282,052 281,669 379,725 0 0
Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve (344,997) (206,433) (305,748)(281,052) (276,657) (377,055)

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES408
1052 EXPENSES RECOVERED 0 0 0 00 386 0 0 0

Total Income 0 0 0 00 386 0 0 0
4001 SALARIES 4,778 3,436 4,581 00 2,234 4,888 0 0
4002 ER'S NIC 502 356 466 00 233 498 0 0
4003 ER'S SUPERANN 1,037 746 994 00 485 1,061 0 0

Continued on next page

P
age 13



WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL23/01/2024
09:26

Page 3

Note: Stronger Communities Committee, 29 January 2024
Annual Budget - By Committee (Actual YTD Month 9)

Last Year 2022-23 Current Year  2023-24 Next Year 2024-25
Total Actual YTD Projected CommittedBudget Actual Agreed EMR Carried Forward

4103 GRANT YOUTH COUNCIL 500 0 500 0500 0 1,350 0 0
4104 GRANT CARNIVAL/XMAS ROTARY CLB 4,500 4,200 4,200 04,100 4,100 4,500 0 0
4106 GRANT - PLAY DAY 1,000 1,000 1,000 01,000 1,000 1,000 0 0
4109 BLUE PLAQUES 0 193 0 01,000 300 0 0 0
4111 WATER SAFETY/EDUCATION 2,000 0 2,000 010,000 0 2,000 0 0
4112 GRANT - WITNEY TOWN BAND 750 660 660 0660 660 660 0 0
4141 EVENTS 9,000 3,182 9,000 09,000 6,174 10,000 0 0
4145 HM QUEEN'S JUBILEE (2022) 0 744 744 03,000 2,092 0 0 0
4146 HM KING'S CORONATION (2023) 3,000 2,591 2,591 00 1,431 0 0 0
4148 D-Day 80th Anniversary comm'n 0 0 0 00 0 1,500 0 0
4149 WTC 50th ANNIVERSARY 0 0 0 00 0 5,000 0 0
4154 EXPERIENCE OXFORDSHIRE M'SHIP 0 0 0 00 0 1,200 0 0
4160 TOWN TWINNING 500 0 500 0500 0 500 0 0
4161 TOWN TWINNING ROOM HIRE 500 0 500 0500 0 500 0 0
4167 BUS SERVICE 21,000 15,750 21,000 021,000 21,000 21,000 0 0
4169 CHILDREN & YOUTH PROVISION 40,000 4,600 40,000 044,340 41,334 40,000 0 0
4170 ADVENT FAYRE 2,000 2,020 2,000 02,000 1,399 2,000 0 0
4495 TFR FROM EARMARKED R 0 0 0 0-1,000 0 0 0 0
4892 C/S STAFF RCHG 71,867 43,197 66,012 066,172 55,431 73,721 0 0
4893 C/S O'HEAD RCHG 20,704 15,297 20,396 018,362 18,129 20,857 0 0

Overhead Expenditure 183,638 97,970 177,144 0181,134 156,002 192,235 0 0
Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve (183,638) (97,970) (177,144)(181,134) (155,615) (192,235)

Continued on next page

P
age 14



WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL23/01/2024
09:26

Page 4

Note: Stronger Communities Committee, 29 January 2024
Annual Budget - By Committee (Actual YTD Month 9)

Last Year 2022-23 Current Year  2023-24 Next Year 2024-25
Total Actual YTD Projected CommittedBudget Actual Agreed EMR Carried Forward

Expenditure
Stronger Communities - Income

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve

0
528,635

(528,635)

8,822
313,225

(304,403)

8,822
491,714

(482,892)

0
0

1,000
463,186

(462,186)

5,398
437,671

(432,273)

2,670
571,960

(569,290)

0
0

0
0

Expenditure
Total Budget Income

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve

0
528,635

(528,635)

8,822
313,225

(304,403)

8,822
491,714

(482,892)

0
0

1,000
463,186

(462,186)

5,398
437,671

(432,273)

2,670
571,960

(569,290)

0
0

0
0

P
age 15



 

 

1 
 

YOUTH COUNCIL TASK & FINISH GROUP 

Notes of the Meeting held on Monday 15 January 2024 at 4pm via Microsoft Teams 

Present 

 

Councillor G Meadows (Chair) 

 

  Councillors: J Aitman   R Crouch 

    S Simpson   R Smith    

      

  Officers: Deputy Town Clerk 

    Senior Administrative Officer & Committee Clerk 

    Communications & Community Engagement Officer 

    Business Administration Apprentice    

   

1. WITNEY YOUTH COUNCIL SCOPING 
 

The Deputy Town Clerk provided a summary report of the current position following the 
implementation of the recommendations from the previous meeting on 6 November 2023, 
namely the results from the consultation responses. 

 
Responses had only been received from Henry Box School;  no responses were received from 
Wood Green School. Overall, 15 responses were received, and members felt that the 
responses were similar to those from a consultation carried out by WODC and was viewed by 
the Town Council when considering the Youth Services Grant Funding in 2023. 
 
Members noted that the consultation questionnaire could be re-run in the future, and this 
could be an idea for once the Youth Council was up and running to gain further feedback. 
 
It was noted from the feedback that the key themes on what young people wanted to achieve 

from a Youth Council was making their own decisions and bringing these to fruition. Therefore, 

initial objectives of the Youth Council would be: 

Bring about change and make things happen.  

 Develop projects which represent young people 

 Create and spaces for young people 

 Create learning opportunities for young people 

There would be an opportunity for these to be built upon once the Youth Council had been 

established and had Members. 

Members asked that consideration be given to the length of service and age of members 
recruited to the Youth Council. Care would be given to members that are in exam years and 
their willingness and commitment during key times of those years. 
 
The next steps were to recruit members to the Youth Council and members asked that a short 
video be prepared which could be shown to school form groups in classrooms, therefore being 
less intrusive and more effective as teachers could show when they had appropriate free time 

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



 

 

2 
 

rather than a Councillor visiting the schools to present to each year group assembly separately 
which would be more intrusive on the schools. 
 
The video would include, graphics, stills from activity of the previous Youth Council and 
information of how an application to join the council can be made. The video would be a 
maximum of 3 minutes. 
 
Members asked that the (access/route/way) to apply was made as easy as possible, a 
suggestion was to provide a QR code along with the message to speak to their form tutor for 
further details. The QR code would also allow Schools to include this information in their own 
correspondence with students. 
 
Members agreed that Springfield School should be added to the Core Membership group 
adding to Wood Green, Henry Box and The Kings School. The Core Membership would then 
be approached to get the recruitment underway in March 2024 with the aim of having the 
Youth Council running from Easter. Other organisations would then be approached to join. 
 
A concern was raised as to if there was an over subscription of places on the Youth Council. 
Members agreed that the applications could then be reviewed and prioritised with the 
possibility of a basic interview or panel which would include the Town Council Youth Mentors. 
Members were keen to ensure that the Youth Council was inclusive and diverse from its 
commencement. 
 
Members discussed how meetings could be run in line with Council standing orders and 
agreed that they would be held in person as the Corn Exchange offered an accessible venue. 
The Annual Meeting would be held in January to fit best within the school year. It was felt that 
a 2-year term of service would be appropriate with any leavers being replaced by way of co-
opting from the waiting list. Consideration would be given to the terms of remaining a 
member of the council, non-attendance to three meetings would lead to the members 
removal. 
 
During the meeting a member reminded the group that “A society grows great when old men 
plant trees in whose shade they know they shall never sit.” It was agreed that this was a useful 
Proverb to be borne in mind when assessing the success of the Youth Council. 
 
Draft application forms and documents (including safeguarding information) and terms of 
reference would be prepared for the next meeting. 

 
Recommended: 

 

1. That, the report of the Deputy Town Clerk be noted and, 

2. That, the governance of the Youth Council be agreed and, 

3. That, Officers produce a recruitment video for with the Core Membership group and, 

4. That, recruitment should commence in early March 2024 and close 20 March. 

 

 
The meeting closed at 4.58pm. 

 

 
Chair. 

Page 17



 
1 

 

CHRISTMAS LIGHTS WORKING PARTY COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Held on Wednesday, 17 January 2024 

 
At 4.12 pm in the Virtual Meeting via MS Teams - Virtual Meeting 

 
Present: 

 
Councillor T Ashby (Chair)  

 
Councillors: R Crouch 

G Doughty 
 

D Edwards-Hughes 
 

Officers: Mark Lewis Head of Estates & Operations 
 Derek Mackenzie Senior Administrative Officer & 

Committee Clerk 
 Angus Whitburn Operations Manager 

 
Others: 0 members of the public. 

Councillor Ruth Smith 
 

 
6   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

7   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest from members or officers. 
 

8   MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Christmas Lights Working Party held on 13 November 2023 
were received. 

 
Resolved: 
 
That, the minutes of the meeting of the Christmas Lights Working Party held on 13 November 
2023 be approved as a correct record of the meeting and be signed by the Chair. 
 
 

9   CHRISTMAS LIGHTS TENDER 2024 & BEYOND 
 
Members received a verbal update by way of a PowerPoint presentation from the Head of 
Estates & Operations (HE&O) which consolidated the ideas that arose from the walkabout 
members undertook on 27 November 2023 to evaluate the 2023 display. 

 
Members discussed the inclusion of businesses and welcomed any sponsorship that could be 
sourced. They asked that Officers approach businesses once a supplier was appointed when it 
would be better known where sponsorship may fit. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 11



Christmas Lights Working Party - 17 January 2024 

 
2 

 
They discussed the idea of having trees attached to businesses in a similar way other local towns 
and councils have. Officers will investigate this along with alternative ideas to ensure that these 
additional displays would be integrated within the scope rather than stand alone in order to help 
protect against any “gaps” if businesses did not wish to participate. 
 
Members also liked the idea of including businesses in a shop window decoration scheme and 
hoped that this is an idea that can be supported. 
 
Members discussed the areas they would like to see the display extend to including some new 
areas to be included in the contract. 
 
Church Green – it was proposed that lights be added to the Western side of Church Green to 
complement those on the Eastern Side. Members asked that consideration be given to the 
brightness of the lights in order to not inconvenience residents; residents should be consulted 
and also invited to the meeting to agree the new display. 
 
Corn Street – The HE&O explained that it would be necessary to gain the authority of the 
landlords of the properties in Corn Street if lights were to be erected on their premises, this 
could provide difficult due to the number of landlords. The feeling from members was that if 
there were gaps in the display this would detract from the overall appearance and potentially 
make the display look sparce. 
 
Welch Way – The Operations Manager explained that the trees along Welch Way, from the 
junction with High Street to Marriotts Shopping Centre were small and this limited what 
decorations could be placed. Therefore, the junction of Welch Way and High Street would be the 
limit. This would also create a buffer between the Town Council lights and those of Marriotts 
Shopping Area. 
 
Northen end of High Street – Members would like the display to extend up to 61 High Street, 
currently occupied by Witney Lighting. It was felt this this would ensure that residents and 
visitors still visit the business premises in this area. 
 
High Street and Market Square – Members felt that the wonderful trees in this area should be 
utilised, the strings of icicle lights previously used have created a simple but effective display and 
the use of hanging motifs may not be necessary in this area. 
 
Members also asked that a projection onto the Corn Exchange be included and also for it to 
extend to projection onto the Market Square itself. 
 
Tree/Pole Motifs – The Operations Manager explained that there was a huge number of designs 
to choose from however once a supplier had been appointed these could be considered, though 
it would be advisable to move away from a “star” being used as these had been part of the 
display for the past seven years. 
 
Members liked the idea of potentially wrapping or part wrapping some trees with lights as it was 
felt this gave an alternative visually impressive result. 
 
Length of Contract – The Operations Manager explained that the standard term of a Christmas 
Lights contract was three years, however officers would like to consider a two plus one-year 
term, this would give the Council some time to consider bringing some of the lighting “in house” 

Page 19



Christmas Lights Working Party - 17 January 2024 

 
3 

following an evaluation of how they would test, store and maintain any lighting that the Council 
took on. 
 
The HE&O explained that it was imperative that communications with a new provider were 
considered following difficulties experienced with previous companies. He then ran through the 
remaining timeline of the project so that members were clear on what was required to ensure 
that the council had sufficient time to appointment a suitable supplier. 
 
Members asked that better fencing be sourced for the bottom of the Christmas Trees rather 
than the use of steel barriers.  
 
Members reviewed images of another local towns light display with the overall response being 
that they were of poor quality and sparce. Members agreed that there was huge value and 
satisfaction for residents in providing a good display and that at a cost of approx. £1 per resident 
it was a worthy expense. However, it was important to consider options that would maximise 
the display but illustrate prudent budget control, such as maximising the lights in trees rather 
than column lights on lampposts. 
 
A member asked for an update on the replacement of the timers that were removed by 
Oxfordshire County Council during the street light upgrades. The Operations Manager reported 
that when OCC investigated, they were surprised at the number that has been removed and 
were therefore still in the process of sourcing replacements to install. It was hoped that these 
will be installed soon. 
 
Recommended: 
 
1. That, the verbal update be noted and, 
2. That, Officers prepare the scope of the Christmas Lights tender based on the areas discussed 

above subject to approval by the Stronger Communities Committee and the budget already 
agreed for 2024 and, 

3. That, residents of Church Green be consulted on the new lighting. 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at: 5.00 pm 

 
Chair 

Page 20



From: M Woodward  
Sent: 13 January 2024 08:09 
To: Sharon Groth 
Subject: Lack of bus shelter at Woodgreen 
 
Dear Madam 
 
I am writing to ask if it is possible to erect a bus shelter at Woodgreen, Witney.  I catch the bus there 
and on my journey to Woodstock on the S7 I see plenty of nice bus shelters but, not only is 
Woodgreen lacking one, there is not even a board with a timetable.  This has been broken a long 
time ago. 
 
I hope you are the correct person to receive this email. 
 
Kind regards. 
 
M Woodward 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 13



   

 

1 
 

 
 

 
Witney High Street and Market Square 
Enhancement Scheme 
 
Engagement Report   
 
 
 

Author(s):  

 

Active Travel Delivery Team 

Place Planning and Coordination South Team and West Team 

Communications and Engagement Team  

 

 

Date: 7 December 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 14



   

 

2 
 

  

Page 23



   

 

3 
 

Contents 
 

Summary       4 
 
Key findings      5 
 
Introduction      6 
 
What happened and who took part?  8  
 
Overview of participation    12 
 
Survey results      18 
 
Additional engagement results   29 
 
Conclusion       34 
 
What happens next?     35 
 
Appendix List      36 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 24



   

 

4 
 

Summary  
 
This document seeks to report on the findings of the community engagement exercise 
conducted between 5 September and 3 October 2023 as part of the Witney High Street 
and Market Square Enhancement scheme.  
 
The purpose of the engagement was to seek feedback from residents, businesses, 
and stakeholders to form parameters and priorities for the design stages of the project. 
This was achieved through community participation in a survey on the Let’s Talk 
Oxfordshire engagement platform, in person stakeholder workshops, two face to face 
public events and other comments received by email and post.  
 
To maximise participation, the project team delivered a communications plan which 
involved the distribution of leaflets to Witney households and business premises, 
social media / website updates, press releases, bulletins, councillor interviews and two 
public events. 
 
The results of the engagement exercises show general support for the project 
objectives and have identified preferences for a range of street improvements that can 
be considered in the project design stages. 
 

  

Page 25



   

 

5 
 

Key findings 

 

• The survey results show a majority of the respondents support each of the five 
scheme objectives, particularly the objective to support local businesses and 
the market. There were similar levels of support for the scheme objectives 
amongst those respondents who identified as having a disability. 
 

• Improved footway surfacing, more trees, plants and gardens, more seating and 
more information on history and heritage were the most popular improvements 
that people would like to see in the project and were similarly popular amongst 
those who identified as having a disability. 
 

• Free text responses highlighted the importance of helping the local economy 
whilst also advocating for place-based interventions such as more greenery, 
more seating, level paving and well-maintained public spaces. 
 

• Other comments supported reopening the High Street to through traffic but 
there were similar levels of support for full pedestrianisation. A call for better 
enforcement of the traffic restriction was expressed in the survey’s free text 
comments and by key stakeholders. 
 

• Councillor workshops identified preferences for new public realm areas, 
improved safety, and better paving materials. Business workshops identified 
preferences for more signage, more loading bays, and better seating and 
lighting. 

  
• There were 643 individual responses to the online survey. The proportion of 

respondents in the 16-24 and 25-34 age groups was significantly lower than 
other age groups. The proportion of respondents in the over 65 age group was 
significantly high. 
 

• There was a low participation from local businesses in both the online survey 
and workshops despite targeted communications aimed to encourage 
businesses to contribute to the engagement exercises. 
 

• The survey showed that car trips to the High Street by residents living in Witney 
represented 40% of trips across all transport modes.  

  

Page 26



   

 

6 
 

Introduction 
 
The existing traffic restriction in Witney High Street and Market Square was 
implemented as a trial under an experimental traffic regulation order (ETRO) in 
summer 2020 and subsequently made permanent in December 2021 through the 
formal traffic regulation order process.  
 
The reduction of car traffic in the town centre had revealed opportunities to reallocate 
road space to contribute to a better pedestrian environment, improved cycling access 
and new retail and leisure activities. A survey by West Oxfordshire District Council 
(App.01) found most residents felt the traffic restriction had a positive effect on the 
town. 
 
On this basis, the county council applied for and was subsequently awarded £1.98m 
of active travel (tranche 3) funding for full project delivery – comprising scheme 
development, design, consultation, construction, and monitoring/evaluation of the 
project. 
 
Early concept designs were drafted to support 
objectives included in the funding application: 
 

• Encourage walking, wheeling, cycling and 
public transport  

• Rationalise existing space for taxis and on-
street parking 

• Improve the road layouts at the junctions of 
High Street/Welch Way and Market 
Square/Corn Street to support the existing 
traffic restriction 

• Implement public realm enhancements 
 
For the scheme to have the consensus of 
residents, businesses and stakeholders and to 
ensure a fair distribution of investment, officers 
began the project with a pre-design engagement 
phase. This phase is crucial to find out what high 
street improvements are most important to the 
local community and using that information, 
officers could better define a design brief which 
could be taken forward in project design stages.  
 
Acknowledging the absence of a masterplan for 
Witney town centre, Oxfordshire County Council 
held a series of officer workshops to agree a 
project vision statement informed by the county’s 
Local Transport and Connectivity Plan and existing 
policy wording from the West Oxfordshire District 
Council (WODC) Local Plan. This provided an overarching concept, providing 
inspiration and motivation for the project team and alignment with the county and 
district strategies. Additionally, a revised set of scheme objectives were agreed that:  

Figure 1 - Project Area 

Page 27

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51924


   

 

7 
 

 

• supported the remit agreed with Active Travel England; and  
 

• set a framework and scope of discussion for the ensuing engagement 
exercises.  
 

The objectives were based on what officers considered was deliverable within the 
context of the agreed project area (Fig. 1), budget available and the scope of ‘highway 
improvements’. 

 
The vision and objectives, together with other scheme information were presented on 
a series of information boards (App.02) which were displayed at community 
engagement events and published online to support the engagement survey. 
 
A series of questions were compiled from the council workshops to be included in the 
online survey (App.03). Questions were designed to show the level of support for each 
of the scheme objectives and to better quantify the preferences for specific built 
environment interventions.  
 
In addition to the structured questions, people were invited to comment freely on how 

they thought the project area could be improved. Comments could be submitted 

through the survey (online or paper), using the online map (App.04) that accompanied 

the survey, or by direct feedback to the project team. The   free text responses allowed 

for greater context so officers could better understand nuances and wider issues, 

including points for other actions or that could be considered against future projects.  

 
The draft information boards and survey questions were presented to town, district 
and county council members in online briefing sessions. Key stakeholders including 
transport, accessibility groups and a local business group were also briefed. The 
feedback received was integrated into the final communication materials used and 
helped to form the communications plan. 
 
Alignment to relevant strategy 
 
The scheme is closely aligned with the county council’s vision set out in the ‘Local 
Transport & Connectivity Plan (LTCP, 2022 – 2050)’, which includes reducing private 
car use through making walking, cycling, public and shared transport the natural first 
choice. In addition, the scheme will play an important role in helping OCC to meet the 
headline targets that underpin the vision and key themes set out in the LTCP, which 
are as follows: 

By 2030 

• Replace or remove one out of every four current car trips in Oxfordshire 

• Increase the number of cycle trips made per week in Oxfordshire from 600,000 
to 1 million 

• Reduce road fatalities or life changing injuries by 50% 

By 2040 

• Deliver a net-zero transport network 

Page 28

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51923
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51922
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51921


   

 

8 
 

• Replace or remove an additional one out of three car trips in Oxfordshire 

By 2050 

• Deliver a transport network that contributes to a climate positive future  

• Have zero, or as close as possible, fatalities or life-changing injuries as a result 
of road traffic accidents 

The LTCP supporting strategies include the Active Travel Strategy which is aligned to 
the council’s strategic priorities. 

The project supports the following county council strategic priorities: 

• Prioritise the health and wellbeing of residents (priority three) 

• Invest in an inclusive, integrated and sustainable transport network (priority five) 

• Preserve and improve access to nature and green spaces (priority six) 

• Play our part in a vibrant and participatory local democracy (priority eight) 

• Working with local businesses and partners for environmental, economic and 
social benefit (priority nine) 

What happened and who took part? 
 
The community engagement period lasted for 28 days, starting after the state school 
summer holiday period. The survey and the engagement events were promoted: 

• on the county council website and the survey website  

• through a series of social media posts (also shared and posted by Councillors, 
district / town councils communication channels) 

• in letters and leaflets direct to properties 

• on posters    
  
Ahead of the community engagement, the county council team held steering meetings 
with councillors and with officers from West Oxfordshire District and Witney Town 
councils to identify the interests, aims and objectives, and formulate the initial 
engagement plan. There was also a site walk with officers from the district council to 
review points of interest. Lead communications, meetings and events were run by the 
county council.  
  
The online survey was open between 5 September and 3 October on the Let’s Talk 
Oxfordshire platform https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/witney-high-street. The 
interactive map accompanied this and allowed participants to drop coded pins into a 
virtual map of the project area to highlight issues and recommendations at specific 
locations. 
  
Two public engagement drop-in events were held where people could learn more 
about the project, share feedback and speak to officers.  The events were timed to be 
more accessible for families, older people and people finishing work:   
  

• Saturday 9 September 2023 between 10am and 4pm at the Witney Methodist 
Church on the High Street   

Page 29

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/witney-high-street
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/admin/projects/witney-high-street/maps/witney-high-street-and-market-square-interactive-map


   

 

9 
 

• Tuesday 19 September 2023 between 5pm and 8pm at Witney Corn Exchange 
on the Market Square  
 

A0 versions of the information boards and a large plan of the project area were 
exhibited at both events – setting out the situation/project information and project 
vision/objectives. The boards helped people focus feedback and visualise 
opportunities that could be incorporated. 
  
284 people attended the two events, which provided constructive feedback and 
highlights of common themes. Local councillor attendance at the events was good. 
Anecdotally, most of the event attendees appeared to be older members of the 
community and had learned about the events from the leaflets sent to them and/or the 
posters that had been put up locally. 
 
Member and stakeholder workshops were planned with councillors, local 
businesses and transport/access groups to allow for more focused discussions around 
specific stakeholder themes. Email invites were sent to all councillors and to transport 
and accessibility groups. All businesses between 33 High Street and 46 Market 
Square received a paper invitation to the business workshop. 
  
The workshops comprised an introduction with project summary, followed by a led site 
walk of the High Street and Market Square, and then discussion sessions. Around 150 
feedback contributions were made to paper maps between the councillor and business 
workshops (roughly 60 and 80 respectively). 
  
 Workshops took place on:  
  

• Tuesday 12 September 2023 between 2pm and 4pm at Witney Corn Exchange 
(Councillor Workshop)  

• Tuesday 26 September 2023 between 6pm and 8pm at Witney Corn Exchange 
(Business Workshop)  

  
The Transport and Accessibility workshop was cancelled due to very low response to 
invitations. Officers instead reached out to the contacted groups again to seek one to 
one discussions and subsequently met with bus companies (Stagecoach and West 
Oxfordshire Community Transport) and Thames Valley Police.  
   
Printed and online communications: 
  
All project materials were downloadable from the Let’s Talk Oxfordshire webpage, 
Information was also sent to parish councils. 
  
Residents leaflet   
Double-sided A4 leaflets (App.05) were delivered to just over 15,000 households and 
businesses throughout the town. The leaflet outlined the project, the dates of the drop-
in events, the survey, and how to contact officers with feedback. A number of visitors 
attending the drop-in events said they did not use the internet and cited the leaflets as 
their main information on the project – many collected paper survey copies from the 
public engagement drop-in events to complete. A3 posters showing summarised 

Page 30

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51920


   

 

10 
 

information from the leaflets were put up in the Corn Exchange Hall, Witney Town 
Council noticeboard, Witney Methodist Church, Witney Library and the WODC shop. 
  
Web pages 
A Witney High Street and Market Square enhancements scheme webpage was 
published on the 22 August – including a link to the survey webpages from 5 
September. This and the Let's Talk Oxfordshire survey webpage are updated as the 
project evolves. The survey webpage includes copies of all the project information 
assets (information boards, map, poster, leaflet/flyer, and frequently asked questions).  
  
Press release   
A press release was published by the county council on 5 September to announce the 
consultation launch. The release was shared directly with local councillors and media 
channels by email (including local newspapers, local radio and television, and 
transport/planning press). Local press ran a story promoting the consultation and BBC 
Radio Oxford interviewed Councillor Enright, the county council Cabinet Member for 
Travel and Development Strategy on 21 September.  
 
Social media posts  
A campaign of social media posts (App.06) was posted on X (formerly known as 
Twitter), LinkedIn and NextDoor between late August and early October to promote 
the consultation and engagement events. The initial X posts (promoting the 
engagement events and then the survey launch also) recorded over 1000 views each, 
and the later posts on X (promoting the survey) recorded over 800 views each.  
  
Geotargeted posts on NextDoor were shared with neighbourhood groups covering the 
whole of Witney, and neighbouring villages (Crawley, Curbridge, Delly End, 
Ducklington, East End, Hailey, Minster Lovell, New Yatt, North Leigh, Poffley End, 
South Leigh and Wilcote). 
  
Bulletins  
Two Oxfordshire County Council travel bulletins promoted the consultation survey and 
events, which were sent to approximately 4,000 registered recipients. It was also 
promoted in the Your Oxfordshire email bulletin which was sent to approximately 
35,000 registered recipients.   
  
Business Letters for workshops  
The 151 businesses within the project area received a letter inviting them to the 
planned business workshop (App.07). Additionally, a note was published in West 
Oxfordshire District Council’s September Business Matters newsletter (App.08) to 
promote it.  
  
Invitees were provided an online registration form to confirm their attendance. 
Registrants were also asked the following questions so that the event could be better 
tailored for them: 

• What they would like to get out of the event 

• If they had any questions they would like to ask ahead of the event 

• To share three key interests related to the event 
 
80 people viewed the registration webpage. 16 representatives from 14 businesses 

Page 31

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/roadworks/future-transport-projects/witney-high-street
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/witney-high-street
https://news.oxfordshire.gov.uk/give-your-views-on-witney-high-street-improvements/
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/witney-high-street-and-market-square-enhancements-scheme
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51919
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51918
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51917


   

 

11 
 

registered for the workshop. Two representatives were ultimately unable to attend the 
event. The attendees were from a mix of local independent companies and multi-
regional chains representing a breadth of services (including hospitality, retail, local 
government and professional services). 
 
 

  

Page 32



   

 

12 
 

Overview of participation 
 
Over 2,500 people visited the online survey and map on Let’s Talk Oxfordshire 
between 5 September and 3 October 2023. 643 people completed the survey online, 
and 23 paper surveys were returned. Almost all respondents lived in the town or a 
neighbouring village. 2,243 people accessed multiple features of the survey pages, 
and there were 737 document downloads: 

• 275 downloads of the information boards 

• 138 of the map of the project area 

• 96 of the project poster 

• 228 downloads of other documents 

• Additionally, 170 visitors accessedthe FAQs 
  
Registration on the survey site was optional – there were 30 new registrations with 
Let’s Talk Oxfordshire to respond to the survey. Most people accessed the survey 
webpages directly, many also accessed it from social media links, and some through 
search engines.  
 
Ways people accessed the Let’s Talk Oxfordshire survey webpage:  
  

Social media 875 

Emails 150 

Search engines 171 

Direct 1469 

Total 2665 

 
Social media access:  
  

NextDoor 60 

Facebook 699 

Instagram 3 

LinkedIn 9 

X(Twitter) 104 

Total 875 

 
There was a daily average of 91 visitors to the survey webpage whilst the survey was 
open. 
  
 
 

 
  

Page 33



   

 

13 
 

Survey results  
 
Demographic data 

To understand more about the balance of those who participated in the online 
engagement, survey respondents were asked to complete a set of demographic 
questions. Where applicable, the demographic information received from the survey 
responses has been compared to the Office for National Statistics Census 2021 
population data in the Witney parliamentary constituency area1 to identify any 
anomalies.   
 
Q: What is your age? 
Results show that respondents to the survey are heavily weighted towards the upper 
age groups when compared to the overall age demographics of Witney. There is a 
notable lack of participation amongst the younger age groups.  
 

 
 
Q: What is your sex? 
The survey results show that the proportion of male and female respondents is roughly 
proportionate to the overall gender demographics of Witney (male, 49.1% and female 
50.9%). 
 

 
 

1 www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/ 

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

65 and over 55-64 45-54 35-44 25-34 16-24 15 or under Prefer not to
say

Q: What is your age?

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Male Female Prefer not to say Another term

Q: What is your sex?

Page 34



   

 

14 
 

Q: What is your ethnic group? 
The survey results show that the share of ethnic groups responding to the survey are 
roughly proportionate to the overall ethnic demographics of Witney (white, 95.2%).  
 

 
 
Q: Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a long-term illness, health 
problem or disability which has lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months? 
The survey results show that the share of participants who answered “Yes – a lot” or 
“Yes – a little” is similarly proportionate to the overall share of people in Witney who 
are identified as disabled under the Equalities Act (15.1%). 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0.0%

87.3%

0.8% 0.3% 0.6% 1.1%

9.8%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

Black or Black
British

White Asian or Asian
British

Chinese Mixed or
multiple ethnic

groups

Other Prefer not to
say

Q: What is your ethnic group?

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

Yes - a lot Yes - a little No Prefer not to say

Q: Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a long-term 
illness, health problem or disability which has lasted, or is 

expected to last, at least 12 months?

Page 35



   

 

15 
 

Q: Are you a carer? 
The survey results show that the share of participants who answered “Yes” is similarly 
proportionate to the overall share of people in Witney who are providing unpaid care 
(8.3%). 
 

 
 
Q: In what capacity are you responding to this consultation? 
The survey results show that most respondents to the survey live in Witney and just 
under a quarter of respondents are living in other West Oxfordshire areas. Although 
the survey was promoted widely in posters, leaflets, letters and online,there is a lack 
of response from local businesses/organisations in the survey. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Yes No Prefer not to say

Q: Are you a carer?

69.2%

23.6%

1.4% 0.3% 1.3% 0.5% 0.3% 1.1% 0.2% 0.8% 1.4%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

Q: In what capacity are you responding to this consultation? 

Page 36



   

 

16 
 

Q: How do you travel to the High Street? 
The results show that most survey respondents travel to Witney High Street by car, 
as a driver. These results were also filtered to only show travel behaviours 
specifically amongst residents living in Witney. 
 

 
 
Witney residents: mode share of trips to the High 
Street 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 2.2% 4.4%

48.8%

0.6% 2.8% 1.1% 0.5%

7.8%

38.0%

0.5%
0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Q: How do you travel to the High Street

Page 37



   

 

17 
 

Q: How often do you travel to Witney High Street and Market Square? 
Results show that around 85% of respondents to the survey travel to Witney High 
Street more than once a week.  
 

 
 
 

 

  

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

Rarely Every 2 weeks Once a month Once or twice a
week

3-5 days a week Every day

Q: How often do you travel to Witney High Street and Market Square?

Page 38



   

 

18 
 

Survey results 
 
Scheme objectives 
 
Participants were asked to indicate their level of support for each of the five scheme 
objectives, with the aim of learning how well certain aspects of the project may be 
supported. Accessibility is an essential consideration within the project, so overall 
responses have been compared to those who answered that their day-to-day activities 
were limited because of a long-term illness, health problem or disability to help identify 
differential preferences and potential negative impacts for that group.  
  

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective, “To enhance public 
spaces while protecting the town’s history and character”? 
The results show that almost 75% of respondents fully support or partially support 
this objective. 

 
 
Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective “to support local 
businesses and the markets”?  
The results show that survey respondents support this scheme objective over other 
scheme objectives. 

 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Fully support Partially
suport

Do not
support

Really do not
support

No opinion Not sure

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective, "To 
enhance public spaces while protecting the town's history and 

character"? 

All Those with disabilities

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%
90.0%

Fully support Partially
suport

Do not
support

Really do not
support

No opinion Not sure

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective, "to 
support local businesses and the markets"? 

All Those with disabilities

Page 39



   

 

19 
 

 
Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective “to make it easier 
and more enjoyable to walk, wheel and cycle”?  
The results show that this objective is fully supported or partially supported by over 
66% of respondents. This objective is the least supported amongst those identifying 
with disabilities. 

 
 
Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective “to upgrade access 
to public transport”?  
The results show that almost 75% of respondents fully support or partially support 
this objective. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

Fully support Partially suportDo not support Really do not
support

No opinion Not sure

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective, "to 
make it easier and more enjoyable to walk, wheel and cycle"? 

All Those with disabilities

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

Fully support Partially suport Do not support Really do not
support

No opinion Not sure

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective, "to 
upgrade access to public transport"? 

All Those with disabilities

Page 40



   

 

20 
 

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective “to improve safety 
for all users”?  
The results show that over 75% of respondents fully support or partially support this 
objective. 

 
 
 
Q: What improvements would you like to see on Witney High Street and Market 
Square? 
Optional question (636 responded, 7 skipped) 

 
Respondents were provided the opportunity to express their support for a range of 
specific improvements to the high street environment. 21 improvements were listed 
with the option to support for each. 
 
The top five improvements that returned the highest number of those either fully 
supporting or partially supporting are:  
 

1. Improved footway surfacing, with 516 respondents in full or partial support 
2. More seating, with 480 in full or partial support 
3. More plants and gardens, with 469 in full or partial support 
4. More trees, with 459 in full or partial support 
5. Information on local history and heritage, with 444 in full or partial support 

 
Of these responses, the top five categories from those who identified as having a 
disability are: 
 

1. Improved footway surfacing, with 82 respondents in full or partial support 
2. More seating, with 77 respondents in full or partial support 
3. Blue badge parking, with 74 respondents in full or partial support 
4. More plants and gardens, with 66 respondents in full or partial support 
5. More trees, and information on local history and heritage, both had 65 

respondents in full or partial support 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

Fully support Partially suport Do not support Really do not
support

No opinion Not sure

Q: What best describes your overall opinion of the objective, "to 
improve safety for all users"? 

All Those with disabilities

Page 41



   

 

21 
 

 
 
 

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

New Road Design at the Corn Street and Welch Way
Junctions

Less Traffic

Revised taxi rank

More loading bays

Blue badge parking

More crossings

Wider footways

Improved footway surfacing

Better directions and signage

Improved lighting

More safe and secure cycle parking

More space for bus stops

More trees

More plants and gardens

More seating

Play space

Public art

More areas for outdoor dining

More space for events

More space for the market

Information on local history and heritage

Q: What improvements would you like to see on Witney High Street and market 
Square? (All answers)

Fully support Partially support Not sure No opinion Do not support Really do not support

Page 42



   

 

22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

New Road Design at the Corn Street and Welch Way
Junctions

Less Traffic

Revised taxi rank

More loading bays

Blue badge parking

More crossings

Wider footways

Improved footway surfacing

Better directions and signage

Improved lighting

More safe and secure cycle parking

More space for bus stops

More trees

More plants and gardens

More seating

Play space

Public art

More areas for outdoor dining

More space for events

More space for the market

Information on local history and heritage

Q: What improvements would you like to see on Witney High Street and market 
Square? (Those with disabilities' answers)

Fully support Partially support Not sure No opinion Do not support Really do not support

Page 43



   

 

23 
 

Q: Improvements that would encourage you to walk, wheel or cycle to Witney 
High Street and Market Square more often? 
Optional question (591 responses, 52 skipped) 

The results show less support for more cycle parking and improved crossings 
compared to the other suggested improvements. 

 
 

Other responses included: 

• Reinstate vehicle access 

• Better public transport to/from local villages (twice) 

• It’s not safe to cycle on the other roads as they now have much more (car) 
traffic on 

• Segregated cycle lanes/footpaths and pavements, better maintenance of 
greenery 

• Spend money on public facilities instead 

• Improving cycle lanes into Witney, e.g., the A4095 
 

Q: Which measures would encourage you to use public transport more often 
for access to Witney High Street and Market Square? (Tick all that apply). 
Optional question (495 responses, 148 skipped) 

The results show more support for better bus timetables and route maps of bus 
services compared to improvements of bus stops. 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

More safe and
secure cycle

parking

Better walking
and cycling

routes to the
town centre

Better
enforcement of

the traffic
restriction

More seating,
plants and

gardens

Improved
pedestrian

crossing
facilities

Improved
footway
surfacing

Other

Q: What improvements would encourage you to walk, wheel or cycle to 
Witney High Street and Market Square more often?

All responses Those with a disability

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

More space for bus
stops

Bigger
shelters/more seats

Better bus
timetables and

route maps

Improved access
for disabled people

Other

Q: Which measures would encourage you to use public tansport more 
often for access to Witney High Street and Market Square?

All respondents Those with a disability

Page 44



   

 

24 
 

Other comments included: 
- Improved links with local villages 
- Better timetables and regular routes 
- Bus stops at new developments so they are better connected 
- More frequent buses that also run into the evening 
- Cheaper fares 
- More reliable services 

 
The “Other” answers provided by those who said their day-to-day activities limited 
because of a long-term illness, health problem or disability did not leave any 
comments.  
 

Qualitative responses (Free text) 
 
Participants were offered the opportunity to comment freely on any issues or 
improvements that were not available for selection in mandatory/fixed survey 
responses. These responses were analysed by counting the number of mentions of 
key words and applying a contextual appraisal of the points raised. The key words 
were then grouped into sets of themes for reporting.   
 
A summary of the most mentioned themes and key words have been provided in 
respect to the following questions. 
 
Q: What improvements would you like to see on Witney High Street and market 
Square? (Free text)  
Optional question (436 responses, 207 skipped) 

 
Participants were asked to comment on whether there were any other improvements 
they would like to see in Witney High Street that weren’t listed amongst the 21 
selections. From these comments, five key themes were identified: 
 

• Pedestrian and walking environment  

• Economy 

• Infrastructure/public space 

• Traffic/cars 

• Cycling 

 
Pedestrian and walking environment: 

The most repeated comments included “pedestrianise” which was used 34 times; this 

referred to the full pedestrianisation of Witney High Street. Other comments most 

mentioned were walkways or footpaths, particularly surrounding the widening of 

pavements and consequent narrowing of the carriageway as well as maintenance 

such as weeding, resurfacing and consideration of drainage. Further to this, increasing 

useable crossing points was also mentioned. It was suggested that the current traffic 

light-controlled crossing could be replaced by a zebra crossing, now that traffic has 

reduced along the High Street so there is no longer a need for the crossing to be 

controlled by traffic lights. Crossing points were also mentioned in reference to Corn 

Street junction, suggesting this was a busy junction where pedestrians and cyclists 

Page 45



   

 

25 
 

were not necessarily prioritised by the current layout. Increased seating and signage 

in the town centre and car parks were also frequently mentioned.  

 

Economy:  

A variety of shops being present on the High Street, with a focus on increasing the 

number of independent/local businesses, was a priority point respondents would like 

to see in Witney High Street. Similarly, higher occupancy rates of units on the High 

Street and maintenance of current empty shop frontages were also frequently 

commented on. It was suggested in the responses that space for pop-up shops or 

markets for independent businesses could improve the High Street. 

 

Public space: As a public realm scheme, the theme of public space was repeated 

frequently. It included suggestions for pavement improvements and resurfacing as well 

as maintenance of the current streetscape. This included weeding, drainage and litter 

picking. Again, full pedestrianisation of the street was frequently mentioned, however 

a relative number of responses also called for the road to be fully reopened to all traffic. 

Alongside this, the current signage outlining who is eligible to access the High Street 

was mentioned to be unclear and cluttered on the streetscape. Regarding public 

space, it was also commented that the two ends of the project area feel unrelated and 

some more linkage between the Market Square and Welch Way ends should be 

considered. It was additionally suggested that linkage to other areas of Witney outside 

of the scope area such as Marriotts Walk should also be considered. Increased seating 

options and the creation of a social hub/meeting point also featured in the comments.  

 

Traffic: 

Responses highlighted the potential to move the taxi rank out of the High Street. This 

would allow space for more loading bays which was frequently mentioned as an issue. 

The current disabled parking available on High Street has accessibility issues as the 

wall of the sloping bank is on one side and the carriageway on another. It was 

suggested that these bays could be replaced with drop off/short stay provision such 

as 30-minute parking bays for everyone.  

 

One of the town’s attractions is its free parking. Commenters said that this should stay 

as it is. Enforcement was mentioned in multiple contexts: the restriction of the traffic 

to be enforced through Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) cameras or 

rising bollards and the disabled parking to be checked and enforced more strictly by 

traffic officers.  

 

Cycling: 

Cycling was referenced regarding current infrastructure – in particular cycle parking 

and designated cycle spaces such as segregated cycle lanes or widened shared 

pathways. It was mentioned that cycle parking, although well used, was not in the most 

appropriate locations and lacked some appropriate features such as lighting and 

effective design of the cycle racks for their position. Moving cycle parking to more 

appropriate locations could help discourage pavement cycling, which was highlighted 

as a priority concern due to pedestrians feeling unsafe. This would also be helped by 

Page 46



   

 

26 
 

delivering more designated cycle spaces. It was commented that Corn Street’s cycle 

lanes would be more useful on the High Street.  

 
Q: In your opinion, what makes a successful High Street?  
Optional question (540 responses and 103 skipped) 

 

Participants were asked what they thought made a successful High Street and given 
the opportunity to respond with free text. Three key themes were identified: 
 

• Economy  

• Environment  

• Infrastructure 
 

Economy  

Independent and local shops was the most mentioned response to what participants 

thought made a successful High Street. Access for small businesses was mentioned 

as a key to success, either through incentives such as lower business rates or the 

opportunity to take part in local markets or events. A successful High Street, to 

respondents, meant the street having a “buzz” something that comes from elements 

such as an entertainment space, outdoor seating, café culture and a nighttime 

economy. To support the feeling of a “buzz”, shops needed to be filled and diverse, 

with functional businesses alongside local businesses so that locals as well as 

tourists can use and benefit from the High Street.  

 
Environment: 
In terms of the surroundings and conditions as well as the ambience, respondents 
felt a High Street was successful if the streetscape was clean, uncluttered and 
natural; displaying flowers and plants that celebrated the town while providing shade 
and contributing to cleaner air. The ambience was also important to respondents, 
suggesting a High Street should feel like a community space where visitors feel safe 
and secure, especially as a pedestrian. 
 
Infrastructure:  

Visitors wanted to feel more safe and secure as pedestrians. This could help to be 

achieved by providing a designated cycle area to reduce pavement cycling. Need for 

suitable lighting was also highlighted to improve a sense of safety, especially at 

nighttime. From the comments, a successful High Street was somewhere that had 

functional seating and access for all ages, including children and the elderly. This 

included level paving, easy access to shop fronts and comfortable seating at 

different levels. Other infrastructure such as wayfinding signage, a map of the town 

centre and the wider area plus information on local events, facilities and transport 

options was considered key to a successful High Street – particularly for tourist 

benefits. It was suggested these elements should be in keeping with other signage 

and infrastructure and celebrate the heritage of the area. 

 
Q: Please tell us anything else you would like to say about Witney High Street 
and Market Square. 
Optional question (414 responses, 229 skipped) 

Page 47



   

 

27 
 

 
Participants were asked if they wanted to say anything else about the High Street 
and Market Square many of these responses explained or reiterated responses 
given to previously asked questions. From this, five key themes were identified: 
 

• Environment 

• Infrastructure  

• Buses/public transport 

• Traffic 

• Economy 
 

Environment:  
Introducing a green space and greenery to the High Street was a priority for 
respondents, as was putting a focus on climate change and improving air quality. 
Good maintenance was also important, including weeding, litter picking and level 
paving. The comments relating to the ambience suggested that continental style 
night-time café culture with al fresco dining was a popular idea, and this would 
contribute to creating a safer space especially after dark. Many respondents felt the 
history and heritage of Witney could be more celebrated and promoted. It was 
suggested that signage and wayfinding should be in keeping with the historic town 
centre as well as draw attention to and provide information on features such as the 
Buttercross and the Town Hall.  
 
Infrastructure: 

The unevenness of walking surfaces was highlighted as a concern for pedestrians 

and cyclists, particularly in terms of mismatched paving types and the sloping of the 

“bank” on one side of the High Street. Commenters felt that increasing the number of 

public bins would help reduce littering in the town centre. As discussed earlier in this 

report, a number of comments included: changing the current traffic-light controlled 

crossing to be a zebra crossing, introducing designated cycle areas, enhanced 

promotion of the Buttercross and the Town Hall as heritage assets, and increased 

appropriate signage and wayfinding.  

 
Public transport: 
There were a number of suggestions for improving frequency and reliability of 
connections to rural areas and villages. Electrification of buses was mentioned in 
relation to air quality. Moving the bus stops was also highlighted, mainly noting a 
concern that buses that spend a long time at the Market Square stops. Cycle parking 
and issues of bike theft were also highlighted. 
 
Traffic: 
A number of responses said the High Street should be fully opened to traffic, 
however a similar number called for the High Street to be fully pedestrianised. 
Further comments were made surrounding enforcement of drivers using the High 
Street illegally, with suggestions of implementing ANPR cameras as a way of 
enforcing this. The importance of loading bays for businesses to continue to run 
successfully was a key theme. A focus on the traffic that has been rerouted as a 
result of the High Street’s closure was also highlighted plus improvements needed 
for the Market Square’s junction with Corn Street. 

Page 48



   

 

28 
 

 
Economy: 

The importance of tourism, heritage and history to ensuring Witney is fully promoted 

as an attractive destination for visitors was important. Filling empty shop units by 

providing businesses with incentives or lower business rates was mentioned as a 

part of this. Continuing access to free parking was the key element raised.  

 
  

Page 49



   

 

29 
 

Additional engagement results 
 

Let’s Talk Oxfordshire interactive online map response 
Optional activity - 28 people participated adding 121 pins to the map 

 
Alongside the consultation survey, participants had the opportunity to provide 
comments by adding pins to specific points on a map of the project area. 15 categories 
were provided for the pins, and the map allowed pictures to be included if participants 
wished to add them. A summary of the categories has been provided below while a 
map displaying the spatial distribution of comments is shown (App.09).  
 
Of the 121 comments received, eight users uploaded pictures to facilitate their point. 
These are found in (App.10). 
 
Results show that the largest category used was “issue/problem here” which accounts 
for 29.8% of all responses. These generally were localised issues, such as missing 
signs, improvements to specific areas (such as the Buttercross) and suggestions for 
general improvements to the street.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

Categories of comments from the Interactive map on Let's 
Talk

Page 50

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51916
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51915


   

 

30 
 

Comments from the event book 
 
A total of 14 people provided handwritten comments in a guest book or to officers at 
the face-to-face public events. These comments were categorised into three key 
themes: 
 

• Buses 

• Cycling 

• Infrastructure 

 
People contributing to the handwritten comments thought that it was important to 
consider rerouting options for the buses, especially in relation to buses that park or 
dwell at Market Square stops. Also mentioned were buses switching off their engines 
when parked as this is contributing to noise and air pollution. 
 
Further comments were made about cycling, suggesting the cycle lane in Corn 
Street would be better used in High Street so that cyclists do not use the pavement.  
 
Infrastructure was also a key theme. Wider pavements were important, so that al 
fresco dining and seating could be introduced to High Street and Market Square. 
Maintenance was also mentioned relating to litter and a tidy streetscape. 
 
Other comments included considering the issues surrounding traffic rerouted by the 
closure of the High Street.  
 

 
Stakeholder workshops 
 
The purpose of the workshops was to identify priorities that were specific to the 
particular stakeholder groups.  
 
Activities involved site walks so that issues/improvements could be discussed 
between groups “in the field”.  
 
These discussions were then developed into written markers on a group of maps 

and used as a basis for further roundtable group discussions. The maps and 

respective comments for each stakeholder group are shown in (App.11 and 12).  

 
The stakeholder groups were asked to create a list of five key priorities for 
improvement. These lists are shown below: 
 
Councillor workshop priorities 
 
Group A 

• A new public space outside Church Green & the Angel public house,  
allowing for businesses to have outdoor dining and introduction of 
green space. 

• Digital signage for a map of shops, search function and bus 
timetables 

Page 51

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51914
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51913


   

 

31 
 

• More historic street furniture, benches, lamps etc. 

• Improved engagement with retailers. Make their voices feel heard  

• Introduction of permanent, stone planters, wider pavements with new 
trees 

• Need to identify most popular mode of active travel  
 
Group B 

• Focus on road safety.  

• Think pedestrian priority and "be more Holland" (look more towards a 
model based on the Netherlands’ pedestrian arrangements) 

• Beautiful green spaces for dwelling 
 
Group C 

• Better level paving - solve the hotchpotch of paving types 

• Celebrate history and way finding  

• Add character to the High Street function  
 
Business Workshop Priorities  
 
Group A 

• More/better information and hertiage signage  

• More/better loading bays in Market Square 

• Improved benches and seating 

• Streets should be well maintained and policed  

• Disabled parking should be improved 
 
Group B 

• Lighting - bright, ambient lighting to enhance the space and bring 
people in 

• Seating - consistent furniture, coordinated with bins etc more public 
bins. Keep it tidy! 

• Realign street - wider pavements 

• Better wayfinding and signage – including digital signage by the Town 
Council and Waterstones/Halifax 

• Welch Way junction opportunity for new public square seating near 
restriction 

 
 

Additional stakeholder responses  
 
Witney Town Council 
 
Witney Town Council provided a formal response to the survey questions by letter 
received on 2 October 2023 (App.13). 
 
The letter stated general support for the scheme objectives and provided several 
detailed comments which included: 
 

• Support for signage/wayfinding to historical visitor sites 

Page 52

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51912


   

 

32 
 

• A design that enables expansion of pavement licenses for businesses  

• New plans for loading bays and re-organised blue badge parking 

• Relocated cycle racks 

• Wider footways for pedestrians 

• More bus services to regional destinations and better bus information displays 

• Improved access for disabled users and participation of access groups 

• Formalising road crossings 

• Consideration to the implementation of ANPR cameras to enforce the traffic 
restriction 

• Creation of new public realm outside the Angel public house/War Memorial 

• Secure of funding for Town Council to maintain new street furniture 
 
Oxfordshire Cycling Network 
 
Oxfordshire Cycling Network (a federation of about 30 cycling advocacy groups and 
campaigners across the county) provided a formal response by letter received on 19 
September 2023 (App.14). 
 
The letter provided several detailed comments around general aspirations for the 
town centre including: 
 

• Development of a town square for socialising 

• Enhancing the ‘place’ through built environment design. 

• Creating seating along the raised embankment. 

• Declutter of street furniture. 

• Increase of benches and cycle parking. 

• Redesign of planters for better cycle accessibility. 
 
Bus service providers 
 
In the absence of an in-person workshop with transport and accessibility 
stakeholders, county council officers met with representatives from two bus service 
providers: Stagecoach and West Oxfordshire Community Transport, and 
representatives from Thames Valley Police on 21 September. (App.15) 
 
A summary of the key points raised in the discussion follows: 
 

• Limited space for alighting outside the Methodist Church. An additional 
southbound bus stop would help alleviate this issue. 
 

• Any change to the road layouts at each end of the traffic restriction must 
accommodate turning movements for buses. 
 

• Many services currently operate through Witney Town Centre, and this often 
causes the stacking of vehicles where bus stop spaces cant accommodate 
the number of services. 
 

• A full pedestrianisation of the High Street would have to be balanced against 
the impact on bus journey times and accounting for plans to introduce more 

Page 53

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51911
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51910


   

 

33 
 

bus services through Witney (e.g.,: Oxford Tube and Eynsham Park and Ride 
services). 
 

• The traffic restriction must be enforced to improve road safety. Bus speeds 
through the High Street can be calmed accordingly. 
 

Thames Valley Police 
 
In the absence of an in-person workshop with transport and accessibility 
Stakeholders, county council officers met with a representative from Thames Valley 
Police on 13 October 2023. (App.16) 
 
A summary of the key points raised in the discussion are as follows: 
 

• Emergency service vehicle access must be maintained through the traffic 
restriction at all times. 

 

• Concerns that the traffic restriction is not being enforced. 
 

• Consider hostile vehicle mitigation (measures to ensure a space is best 
designed to reduce risk of and minimise impact from an event of hostile 
driving – deliberately driving a vehicle into a group of people) for any new 
event spaces. 

 

• Closed circuit television (CCTV) cameras are often obscured by tree canopies 
and their ducting systems are prone to damage. Any new public realm needs 
to be monitored by CCTV. 

 

• Impact of crime/anti-social behaviour on the nighttime economy is relatively 
low compared to other towns in Oxfordshire 
 

• The removal of planters at the entrances to the traffic restriction would 
improve road safety. 

 
 

Additional responses received by email 
  
30 response emails were received from six businesses, one interest group, one local 
authority and 13 individual members of the public. Email subjects included survey 
comments, paper copy requests, promoting local services and some comments 
around the project itself.  

• Three emails were received that offered detailed suggestions for project 
proposals – two were from individuals and one from an interest group.  

• Two people sent four detailed emails opposing the project as a whole and 
expressing dissatisfaction with existing traffic restrictions on the High Street. 
One of these people was able to attend the drop-in events and discuss their 
concerns with officers.  

 

 

Page 54

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51909


   

 

34 
 

Conclusions 
 
Overall, the scheme objectives were positively received from roughly 66% of survey 
respondents. This gives assurance to continue the project into the design stages.  
 
Supporting local businesses and the market was a very popular objective amongst 
survey respondents. Support of this nature is multi-faceted, and the project is limited 
to delivering highway improvements only, but this should be coordinated with the 
planning and licensing authorities in West Oxfordshire District Council and Witney 
Town Council. The project can help to facilitate new business and event activities by 
providing space and public realm upgrades where identified.  
 
The information received from the survey and workshops has provided an excellent 
guide for forming the design brief. In particular, the requirement for improved footway 
surfacing was a repeated theme throughout all the engagement activities and would 
help deliver enhancements to the place but also increase the level of service for 
those with mobility impairments. The introduction of new trees, plants and gardens 
will add to the aesthetic of the town centre and improve the biodiversity, but those 
features must be well maintained for the long term. 
 
It is encouraging that responses to the survey from those who declared long term 
health or disabilities are similar to overall trends in the survey responses. However, 
the survey also underlines that blue badge parking is still an important facility for 
those groups. Any reallocation of parking to enable better loading provisions for 
businesses must be based on robust survey data that can provide accurate 
information on occupancy levels and user demand.  
 
There was low participation from local businesses in both the online survey and 
workshops despite targeted communication to achieve higher levels of participation.  
Officers will continue to reach out to local businesses through a variety of media 
including emails, letters, and walkabouts. The county council is also considering 
more door-to-door engagement and intercept surveys to improve participation for 
future engagements.  

 
The county council has noted a consistently lower survey participation rate from 
younger age groups and is looking at how this can be improved. It is acknowledged 
that young people represent a more transient population compared to other age 
groups who are more settled and invested in their local area.  
 
Improving the pedestrian environment in Witney town centre will encourage more 

trips to be made by sustainable transport modes but the engagement results show 

that the number of short car trips to the project area is high. This engagement 

exercise hasn’t sought to strictly define ‘trips’ in comparison with other travel 

behaviour data but to make a significant contribution to net zero targets, councils 

must improve walking and cycling routes across the town but must also work 

together to enact carbon reduction polices that encourage a significant modal shift 

away from the private car.  

  

Page 55



   

 

35 
 

What happens next  

Using the information gathered from the community engagement exercise, officers 
will form an outline design brief to be taken forward to  preliminary design stages.  
 
A consultant is currently being procured to assist with the development of the design 
and their services will also extend to the production of a feasibility study where 
information collated from technical surveys and other relevant data will further inform 
the scope of the project.  
 
A series of concept drawings based on the design brief and feasibility study will form 
the basis of an optioneering exercise with key stakeholders with the aim of finalising 
a preliminary design for public consultation in spring 2024.  
 
The public consultation will give the community a further opportunity to comment on 
proposals and if no substantial objections are made, officers would approve the final 
design for construction at a county council Cabinet Member for Decision meeting. 
 
Construction is provisionally scheduled to start in summer/autumn 2024. At this 
point, a construction phase plan will be communicated through various channels, 
and details kept updated, with the aim of completing the project with minimal 
disruption to residents and businesses.  
 
Officers will commit to providing county, district, town and parish council members 
and key stakeholders (accessibility groups) with information and updates through 
regular briefings as the project progresses ensuring that communications are clear 
and prompt.  
 

Page 56



36 

Appendix List 

01 West Oxfordshire District Council Review of Temporary Traffic Restrictions in 
Witney High Street 2021.pdf 

02 Information Boards.pdf 

03 Witney High Street paper survey.pdf 

04 Interactive Map.pdf 

05 Witney High Street Leaflet.pdf 

06 Witney High Street social media Posts.pdf 

07 Business Workshop Invitation OCC letterhead 310823.pdf 

08 Business Matters Newsletter.pdf 

09 Interactive Hotspot Map.pdf 

10 Interactive Map pictures.pdf 

11 Witney High Street Councillor Workshop Comments.pdf 

12 Witney High Street Business Workshop Comments.pdf 

13 Witney Town Council High Street response.pdf 

14 Oxfordshire Cycling Network Response to consultation on Witney High Street 
Sep23.pdf 

15 Buses Stakeholder meeting minutes.pdf 

16 Thames Valley Police Stakeholder Meeting Minutes.pdf 

Page 57

https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51924
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51923
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51922
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51921
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51920
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51919
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51918
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51917
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51916
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51915
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51914
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51913
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51912
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51911
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51910
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/26465/widgets/84734/documents/51909

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Finance Report
	Annual Budget - By Committee (Actual YTD Month 9)

	9 Youth Council Task & Finish Group
	11 Xmas Lights Working Party
	13 Woodgreen Bus Shelter Request
	14 Witney High Street Engagement Report

